Active English Grammar 

5
 문법 해설 
[Unit 1] Subjunctive Mood
█ Part A Present Subjunctive
	가정법은 의심스럽거나 사실이 아닌 것에 대하여 말할 때 쓰인다.

	가정법현재*는 동사의 원형으로 만들어진다. 가정법현재는 that로 시작하는 명사구 안에서만 존재한다. 이 가정법현재는 제안이나 요구 또는 요청**을 나타내는 동사, 명사, 형용사의 뒤에 온다.

	제안을 나타내는 낱말들: propose, recommend, recommendation, suggest, suggestion, advise, advisable, critical, desirable, important, vital, urge
	The doctor suggested I sleep more.

It is important that he sleep more.

The doctor’s suggestion is that they sleep more.

It is advisable that she sleep more.

	요구를 나타내는 낱말들: demand, imperative, insist, necessary, order, require, required
	My parents have demanded that I be quiet at night.

Your parents require that you be quiet at night.

It will be imperative that she be quiet at night.

	요청을 나타내는 낱말들: ask, beg, prefer, request, wish
	I ask that you have more patience with the other students.

The teacher requested that Nick have his project finished earlier.

	가정법 절을 부정하려면, 가정법 동사 앞에 not를 첨가하라.
	I recommend that you not exercise until you feel better.

	*”현재”라는 용어는 행동이 일어나는 시간보다는 가정법 동사(동사의 원형)의 형태를 가리킨다. 주절의 동사는 어떤 시제도 가능하다.
**가정법 문장에서, that는 어떤 동사들(propose, suggest, insist) 뒤에서 때때로 생략된다. that는 다른 맥락에서는 보통 생략되지 않는다.


█ Part B Past Subjunctive

	가정법 과거*는 상태, 조건, 습관을 서술하는 동사의 과거 형태로 만든다. 그것은 가정적이거나 가상적 상황에 대하여 말하기 위하여 쓰인다. 동사 be의 경우에, 보통은 (was가 아닌) were가 모든 주어에 쓰인다.

	용법
	예문

	이루어지지 않는 소망을 표현하기 위하여 wish의 뒤에서
	I wish Sally were here to help us.

He wishes he could run faster.

	(would, could, might를 가진 절이 뒤따르는) 제2 조건문에서 if(only)의 뒤에서
	If people drove smaller cars, we would all breathe cleaner air.

If I were taller, I could reach the top shelf.

You might like her if you knew her better.

	(보통 would나 could를 가진 문장이 뒤따르는) 비현실적 조건을 표현하는 동사 suppose와 imagine의 뒤에서
	Suppose you met the president. What would you say?

Imagine you were rich. What could you do?

	상상적 조건에서 비교를 하기 위하여 as though나 as if의 뒤에서
	She acts as though she were very rich, but she’s not.

He drives as if he were in a Formula 1 race.

	*”과거”라는 용어는 행동이 일어나는 시간보다는 가정법 동사(단순과거)의 형태를 가리킨다. 위의 예들 모두는 현재에 관한 것들이다.


[Unit 2] Tenses

█ Part A Simple and Progressive Tenses

	

단순시제

	단순시제는 행동이나 상태를 서술하지만, 그 행동이나 상태가 완성되었는지의 여부는 말하지 않는다.

	단순과거는 과거에 시작하여 과거에 끝이 난 행동이나 상태를 서술한다.
	Joanne ate pizza for lunch.

We walked through the park yesterday.

	단순현재는 일상적인 행동이나 상태를 서술한다.
	I eat lunch at noon.

Kelly studies ballet on Wednesdays.

	단순미래는 미래에 시작될 행동이나 상태를 서술한다.
	Next summer, we will / are going to move to Denver.

I will / am going to play soccer tomorrow.


	진행시제

	진행시제는 진행중인 행동을 서술한다. 진행시제는 (여러 시제의) be + (-ing 형태의 동사) 현재분사로 만들어진다.

	과거진행은 과거의 어떤 특정 시점에 진행되고 있던 행동을 서술한다.
	Joanne was eating pizza when the phone rang.

We were walking through the park at four o’clock yesterday.

	현재진행은 현재 진행중인 행동을 서술한다.
	I am eating lunch right now.

Kelly is studying ballet at the moment.

	미래진행은 미래의 어떤 특정 시점에 진행될 행동을 서술한다.
	Next summer, we will / are going to be traveling in Europe.

I will / am going to be playing soccer tomorrow afternoon.


█ Part B Perfect Tenses

	단순완료시제

	단순완료시제는 흔히 어떤 시점 이전에 완성되었거나 (때로는 반복된) 행동이나 상태를 서술한다. 단순완료시제는 (여러 시제의) have + 과거분사로 만들어진다.

	과거완료시제는 이전에 일어나서 다른 과거의 행동이나 과거의 특정 시점과 지속적 관련이 있는 행동이나 상태를 서술한다.
	I was hungry, but they had already eaten dinner.

I had never tasted sushi before we went to Japan.

	현재완료시제는 이전에 일어나서 지금까지 지속적 관련이 있는 행동이나 상태를 서술한다.
	I have been to Jamaica three times.

A: Has he seen that movie yet?

B: No, he has not* seen it yet, but I already have.

	미래완료시제는 이전에 일어나서 미래에까지 지속적 관련이 있는 행동이나 상태를 서술한다.
	Next May, I will have lived here for three years.

After their next trip, they will have been to Peru six times!

	완료시제를 부정으로 만들기 위해서는, 처음 조동사 뒤에 not를 첨가하라.
· She has not met Mark’s parents yet.      · We have not been studying.


	완료진행시제

	완료진행시제는 또 하나의 행동이 일어나기 전이나 어떤 시점이전에 진행되고 있던 행동을 서술한다. 그것은 (여러 시제의) have been + 과거분사로 만들어진다.

	과거완료진행시제는 과거의 또 다른 행동이나 과거의 특정 시점이전에 시작된 진행되고 있던 행동을 서술한다.
	We had been studying for an hour when Pam arrived.

	현재완료진행시제는 이전에 시작하여 현재에도 계속되는 지속적 행동을 서술한다.
	We have been studying for over five hours.

	미래완료진행시제는 미래의 또 다른 행동이나 미래의 특정 시점 이전에 시작한 지속적 행동을 서술한다.
	We will have been studying for over two hours when we take our lunch break.


[Unit 3] Subject-Verb Agreement

█ Part A Recognizing Subjects

	주어의 유형

	분리주어와 동사

	주어와 동사는 다른 낱말이나 구에 의하여 분리되어 있을지라도 반드시 일치해야 한다.
	The students who eat in the cafeteria have to stay in the school at lunch.

	서두의 There와 Here

	There와 Here는 주어가 아니다. 문장이 There is/are이나 Here is/are로 시작하면 주어는 be 동사 다음에 온다.
	There are several minutes left in class.

Here are your items, and here is your change.

	복합주어

	복합주어는 보통 복수동사를 취한다.
	Lauren and Liam study English together.

Sam and Alicia are traveling to Europe.

	or나 nor가 쓰이면, 동사는 더 가까이에 있는 주어와 일치한다.
	Either Kate or Ella is collecting the money.

Kate or her friends are collecting the money.

	주어로서의 집합명사

	집합명사는 보통 단수동사를 취한다. 그 무리의 구성원들이 각기 다른 행동을 할 때는 복수동사를 취할 수 있다.
	Our class meets for a movie night every month.

After the movie, the class go back to their own homes.

	부정대명사

	부정대명사 (예, someone, everyone, nothing, anything)는 단수동사를 취한다.
	I don’t think anybody is coming to the party.

Everyone was tired after the game.


█ Part B Quantifiers

	양화사와 일치

	양화사는 명사의 양을 수식한다. 양화사는 주어와 일치하기 위하여 단수동사 혹은 복수동사가 필요한지에 영향을 줄 수 있다. 

	일부 양화사들은 복합주어일 때도 단수동사를 취한다.
	Each student in the class has to give a presentation.

Every student and teacher enjoys the summer vacation.

	일부 양화사는 복수동사를 취한다.
	Both Hank and Barry are friendly.

Many listeners enjoy her radio show.

Few parents want their children to suffer.

A group of students work at our local McDonald’s.

	일부 양화사는 단수나 복수 동사를 취한다. 불가산명사와 함께 쓰이면, 단수동사를 취한다. 가산명사와 함께 쓰이면, 복수동사를 취한다.
	All the money is yours to spend.

All the zoo’s animals were caught in the wild.

Most tea comes from Asia.

Most students do well on their English tests.

Some cold air was coming from the vent.

Some athletes were going to the track meet.

	분수표현은 그것이 가리키는 명사에 따라서 단수나 복수 동사를 취할 수 있다. 
	Ten percent of the class is absent today.

Half (of) the class is absent today.

Ten percent of the students are absent today.

Half (of) the students are absent today.

	pair of는 명사가 한 단위(예, scissors, pants, shorts)인지 두 개의 별도 개체인지에 따라서 단수 또는 복수가 될 수 있다
	A pair of scissors is in the drawer.

Your pair of pants is in the washing machine.

A pair of bears were seen walking through the campsite.

	a number of(= many)는 복수동사를 취한다.
the number of는 단수동사를 취한다.
	A number of students are going camping this weekend.

The number of students going camping this weekend is ten.


[Unit 4] Modals

█ Part A Ability, Permission, Polite Requests, and Suggestions

	능력과 제안

	형태
	기능
	예문

	현재
	과거/조건
	
	

	can
	could
	능력 표현하기
	I can speak a bit of Chinese.

Sylvia could swim well, but Eric couldn’t.

	shall
	should
	의문형식으로 제안하기
제안이나 충고하기
	Shall we eat at that nice Italian restaurant?

You shouldn’t say bad things about people.

	ought to
	--
	제안이나 충고하기
	You ought to try getting a tutor.

	--
	had better
	강력한 제안하기
(그렇지 않으면 나쁜 일이 일어날 것이므로)
	You’d better not forget to set your alarm clock.


	허락과 정중한 요청

	형태
	기능
	예문

	현재
	과거*
	
	

	can
	could
	허락하거나 허락을 구하기
요청하기
	Can I have some more soup? / Yes, you can.

Could you please shut the door?

	may
	might
	허락하거나 허락을 구하기
	May I go to the park? / Yes, you may.
Might I ask you a question?

	will
	would
	(you와 함께) 의문형태로 요청하기
	Will you help me move this box?

Would you call me right back, please?

	*과거형은 현재형보다 더 정중한 것으로 간주된다. 비록 could, might, would가 과거 시제의 형태일지라도, 그것들은 이 예문들에서 현재 시제를 나타낸다.


█ Part B Obligation, Prohibition, and Lack of Necessity

	의무, 금지, 그리고 필요성의 결핍

	형태
	기능
	예문

	must*
	필요나 의무 표현하기
	We must leave now because the plane takes off in less than two hours.

	must not
cannot/can’t**
	금지 표현하기
	We must not forget to bring the tickets.

You can’t smoke in the library.

	have to
have got to
	필요나 의무 표현하기
	You will have to call a taxi from the airport.

When I was young, I had to walk five kilometers to school.

	not have to
	필요성의 결핍이나 선택적 행동 표현하기
	We don’t have to study tonight. Our test is next week, not tomorrow.

She won’t have to wash the dishes. I will do them.

	need***
	필요나 의무 표현하기
	Need they talk so loudly?

Need we ask for permission to leave?

	need not
	필요성의 결핍이나 선택적 행동 표현하기
	You need not buy milk. We have some in the fridge.

	*must와 have got to는 현재시제에서만 쓰인다.

**cannot/can’t는 비격식적으로 금지를 표현하는데 쓰인다.

***need는 법조동사로서 격식적이고 부정문과 의문문에서만 쓰인다.


█ Part C Probability: Past, Present, and Future

	개연성

	형태
	기능
	개연성
	예문

	do*
	과거, 현재
	100%
	I did eat the whole bowl.
I do like peanuts.

	will
shall**
	미래
	
	We will finish our homework tonight.

I shall ask him about his problem.

	must (not)***
can’t

couldn’t
	과거, 현재
(논리적 결론)
	90% - 100%
	Sam was with me. He couldn’t have robbed the bank.
Kelly’s chair is still warm. She mustn’t / can’t be far away.

	should
	과거, 현재, 미래 (기대)
	70% - 90%
	He should have called before coming over.
Glen should be at home now. Try calling him.

The pizza should be here in thirty minutes.

	could
may

might
	과거, 현재, 미래 (예측)
	70% 이하
	I don’t know who called, but it could have been Jim.

Let’s see this movie. It may be interesting.

Those clouds are gray. It might rain later this afternoon.

	*(법조동사가 아니면서도 때때로 법조동사처럼 쓰이는) do는 진실을 강조하거나 잘못된 서술을 바로잡기 위하여 쓰인다. 
· A: She doesn’t like Jake.  B: No, you’re wrong. She does like Jake.)
**미국영어에서 shall은 미래를 말할 때 흔히 쓰이지 않는다.

***개연성을 표현할 때, must not을 mustn’t로 축약해서는 안 된다.

개연성의 법조동사로 과거를 말하기 위하여서, 법조동사 + have + 과거분사를 쓰라.

· When he lost the game, he must have been angry.


[Unit 5] Adjectives and Adverbials

█ Part A Collective Adjectives

	집합형용사

	the + 형용사는 어떤 공통된 특징을 가진 사람들의 집단을 가리키기 위하여 명사로 쓰일 수 있다. 이런 명사는 항상 복수동사를 취한다.

	the rich, the poor, the homeless, the unemployed, the young, the elderly
	The rich are helping the poor a lot these days.

The young should pay more attention to the elderly.

	-n으로 끝나지 않은 어떤 형용사가 국민을 나타낼 때, the + 형용사는 그 국민 전체를 가리키기 위하여 쓰인다.

	the Irish, the British, the Dutch, the Swiss, the Japanese, the Chinese
	The Irish are said to be similar to the Scottish.

The Japanese introduced sushi to the world.

	국민을 나타내는 형용사가 -n으로 끝나면, 그 국민 전체를 가리키기 위하여 -s를 첨가한다.*

	Russians, Canadians, Germans, Americans, Koreans, Indians
	Americans are largely divided on issues of national policy.

Koreans are strong short-track speed skaters.

	*이런 집합 형용사가 the와 함께 쓰이면, 보통은 그 국민 전체가 아니라 그 국민 가운데 특정한 집단을 가리킨다.

· The Canadians defeated the Russians in last night’s hockey game.


█ Part B Adjective Clauses (Restrictive and Non-restrictive)

	형용사절

	형용사절은 (전치사 +) 관계대명사 혹은 관계 부사로 시작하고 명사를 수식한다. 한정형용사절은 문장에 중요한 정보를 제공한다. 한정형용사절은 콤마로 분리되지 않는다.

	관계대명사: who, whom*, which/that**, 
whose
	The boy who lives in that house is my friend.

The man whom the police arrested may not be guilty.

The book which I am reading is on the table.

The game that my sister gave me is a lot of fun.

The girl whose father owns the Italian restaurant is going to the dance with me.

	관계부사: where, when
	The house where I grew up is no longer there.

I like the day when we fi nish school for the vacation best of all!

	비한정형용사절은 문장에 별도의 정보를 제공한다. 이를 제거해도, 문장은 같은 의미를 갖고 있다. 비한정형용사절은 콤마로 분리된다.

	관계대명사: who, whom*, which**, whose
	The man outside, who has blue shoes, is my neighbor.

Ezra, whom I talked to yesterday, is my friend.

This game, which my sister gave me, is a lot of fun.

Isabella, whose father owns the Italian restaurant, is going to the dance with me.

	관계부사: where, when
	Paris, where there are many museums, is a beautiful city.

Summer, when the days are long and warm, is my favorite season.

	*whom은 who의 목적격 형태이다. 그러나 who는 비격식적 상황에서 자주 whom 대신에 쓰인다.

	**한정절은 동물이나 물건을 가리킬 때 that를 쓰지만, 비한정절은 항상 which를 쓴다.


█ Part C Adverbials and Adverbial Order

	Adverbials and Adverbial Order

	부사류는 동사, 형용사, 다른 부사를 수식하는 단일어 (부사) 또는 구이다. 부사류에는 몇 개의 유형이 있다. 의견의 부사류는 행동이나 상태에 대한 의견을 서술한다. 강조/정도*의 부사류는 행동의 강도를 서술한다. 태도**의 부사류는 어떤 행동이 행해진 방법을 서술한다. 장소의 부사류는 어떤 행동이 어디에서 일어나는지를 서술한다. 빈도***의 부사류는 어떤 행동이 얼마나 자주 일어나는지를 서술한다. 시간의 부사류는 어 떤 행동이 언제 일어나는지를 서술한다. 목적의 부사류는 어떤 행동이 왜 일어나는지를 서술한다.

	한 문장 안에 한 개 이상의 부사가 있으면, 그것들은 정해진 순서대로 놓는다. 정상적으로는 한 문장 안에는 두세 개 이상의 부사가 오지 않는다.

	의견
	주어+동사
(+목적어)
	태도
	장소
	빈도
	시간
	목적

	Luckily,
	Steve studied
	hard
	in his room
	
	last night.
	

	
	The girls ran
	quickly
	to the park
	
	
	to play basketball.

	
	Dad reads books
	quietly
	in the den
	every Saturday
	after lunch.
	

	Surprisingly,
	they swim
	
	in the pool 
	every morning
	
	to stay in shape.

	*강조/정도의 부사류는 그것이 수식하는 동사, 부사류, 형용사의 바로 앞에 놓인다.
**태도의 부사류는 동사의 바로 앞이나 동사 (+목적어)의 뒤에 놓일 수 있다.

***빈도의 부사류는 주어의 앞이나, 주어와 동사의 사이, 또는 문장의 끝에 놓일 수 있다.


[Unit 6] Nouns and Articles

█ Part A Uncountable Nouns and Quantity

	불가산명사와 양

	불가산명사는 결코 복수가 될 수 없다. 불가산명사가 주어일 때, 동사는 단수형이다.

	불가산명사의 예: 

accommodation, advice, baggage, clothing, equipment, grammar, hair, information, jewelry, knowledge, mail, money, scenery
	We have been studying a lot of grammar recently. The information we need about Viking history is not in this book. 

	부정형용사는 흔히 불가산명사의 양을 표현하기 위하여 쓰인다.

	부정형용사의 예:

(a) little, any*, some**, much*, a lot of / lots of, plenty of, most of
	Do you have any milk?

There isn’t much furniture in this room.

He used to have a lot of hair, but now he is bald.

	부분사는 전체의 일부를 표현하는데 쓰인다. 부분사가 불가산명사를 양으로 표현하는데 쓰일 수 있다.

	부분사의 예:

a bunch of, a flock of, a gang of, a herd of, a packet of, a set of, a swarm of, a tube of, a pair of, a piece of
	I cut off a lock of hair.

He bought two tubes of toothpaste.

My mother got a nice bouquet of flowers from my father.

	*any(“어느 것도 상관없다”의 의미가 아니라면)와 much는 부정문과 의문문에만 쓰인다.
· What kind of pizza do you want?” “I don’t want any pizza.” (negative statement)

· “Any kind is fine.” (= It doesn’t matter which kind of pizza.)

**어떤 것을 제공하거나 요구할 때, 의문문에서 some을 사용한다.

· Do you want some bread? (= I have bread, and I am off ering to share it with you.)

· Can I have some water? (= I can see there is water, and I want some of it.)


█ Part B The Indefinite Articles

	부정관사

	부정관사(a/an)은 단수보통명사를 소개하는데 쓰인다. a는 자음으로 시작하는 명사(명사를 수식하는 형용사)의 앞에 쓰인다. an은 모음으로 시작하는 명사(명사를 수식하는 형용사)의 앞에 쓰인다.

	A big elephant is eating a grapefruit.

A university student must work hard to succeed.

(University 는 a /ju/ 로 시작한다.)
	There is an elephant among the giraffes.

You have an hour to finish the test.

(hour 의 h는 묵음이다.)

	부정관사는 복수명사나 불가산명사가 아닌 단수명사와 함께만 쓰인다.

	There are an oranges in the bag. (X)

Would you like a rice? (X)
	There are (some) oranges in the bag.

Would you like some rice?

	부정관사는 고유명사가 아닌 보통명사와 함께만 쓰인다.

	I talked to an Ellen yesterday. (X)

Pierre comes from a France. (X)
	I talked to Ellen yesterday.

Pierre comes from France.

	부정관사는 비율을 가리키는데 쓰인다. 이 경우에, 부정관사는 per의 의미이다.

	Kyle works eight hours a day.

They go on vacation twice a year.
	Her new car can go faster than 200 kilometers an hour!


█ Part C Definite Article

	정관사

	정관사(the)는 이미 언급한 (단수와 복수) 명사를 가리키는데 쓰인다.

	I see a deer beside those trees.

The deer is eating leaves off the trees.

	어떤 명사들은 화자들 사이에 일반적으로 이해되어 the를 쓸 수 있다.

	the office, the library, the post office, the gym, the doctor, the dentist, the mall, the park

	국명에서 특히 보통명사가 포함되어 있으면 the를 국명의 일부로 쓴다.

	the United States (the US), the United Kingdom (the UK), the Republic of Korea,

the United Arab Emirates, the Netherlands

	the는 또한 (예를 들어, 하나만 존재하는) 유일한 것을 가리키는데 쓰인다. 이는 최상급 다음에 오는 명사도 포함한다.

	The moon is in the sky.

She is the smartest girl in our class.

	the + 단수명사는 동물, 발명, 악기, 발견에 대한 일반적 정보를 제공하기 위하여 쓰일 수 있다.

	The lion hunts in groups.

My sister can play the piano.

The microscope was used to discover the atom.


█ Part D Generic Nouns

	통칭명사

	통칭명사는 어떤 형태의 것의 전체 구성원을 가리킨다. 통칭명사는 그 앞에 관사가 없거나, 부정관사나 정관사가 올 수 있다.

	통칭명사는 단수 또는 복수일 수 있다.*
	Chocolate comes from Mexico.

Candy is sweet.

Ants have more legs than snakes.

	통칭명사는 부정관사가 앞에 올 수 있다.**
	A peninsula is surrounded by water on three sides.

(특정한 페니슐라가 아닌, 모든 페니슐라)

An island is surrounded by water on all sides.
(특정한 섬이 아닌, 모든 섬들)

	통칭명사는 단수이면서 정관사가 앞에 올 수 있다.**
	The guitar is my favorite instrument.

The tiger is larger than the lion.

	*불가산명사는 단수형태를 취한다. 가산명사는 복수형태를 취한다.
**가산통칭명사만이 관사가 앞에 올 수 있다.


[Unit 7] Pronouns
█ Part A Reflexive and Reciprocal Pronouns

	재귀대명사와 상호대명사

	재귀대명사는 문장 안에서 주어를 가리키기 위하여 쓰인다. 또한 재귀대명사는—누가 무엇을 직접 했다는 것을 보이기 위하여—강조적으로 쓰일 수 있다.
	Emily talks to herself sometimes. (= Emily talks to Emily.)

I cooked some Thai food by myself.

The director himself starred in the movie.

The vice-president himself disagreed with the president’s remarks.

	상호대명사는 두 주어가 상호 작용함을 보여주는 대명사이다.*
	Tom and Kerri greeted one another. (= Tom greeted Kerri, and Kerri greeted Tom.)

They were embarrassed that they had forgotten each other’s names.

	*상호대명사는 두 개가 있다: one another, each other. 이것들은 바꿔서 쓸 수 있다.


█ Part B Interrogative and Relative Pronouns as Objects of Prepositions

	의문대명사와 관계대명사

	의문대명사는 질문을 하기 위하여 쓰는 대명사이다. 

의문대명사들: who, whom, whose, which, what, when, where, how
	Whose car is that?

Who will be arriving later?



	관계대명사 which, whom*, whose는 전치사의 목적어로서 전치사 바로 뒤에 올 수 있다.
	The team for which** I play won the tournament.

The house in which I lived is now part of a shopping mall.

Can you see the girl to whom Alan was speaking?

That is the girl to whose*** parents I was talking.

	*whom은 비격식적 상황에서 보통 who로 대체되지만, 전치사 바로 뒤에서는 whom을 써야 한다.
· The man to whom I spoke was polite. (O)

· The man to who I spoke was polite. (X)

	**비록 that이 한정절에 정상적으로 쓰이지만, 전치사 다음에는 올 수가 없다. 반면에, which는 한정절과 비한정절 모두에 쓰이고, 전치사 다음에도 올 수 있다.

	***whose가 전치사의 뒤에 오면, whose와 그 뒤에 오는 명사는 전치사의 직접목적어를 만든다.


█ Part C Indefinite Relative Pronouns

	부정관계대명사: whatever, whichever, whoever, whomever

	부정관계대명사는 선행사를 갖지 않는다. 부정관계대명사는 다른 부정대명사와 같이, 어떤 구체적 물건이나 사람을 가리키지 않는다.
	Please take a message from whoever calls.

(whoever = anyone who)

You can go by whichever route you want.

(whichever route = any route that)

I’ll do whatever I can.

(whatever = anything that)

	때때로 단순관계대명사 who, whom, what는 부정관계대명사의 역할을 하기도 한다.
	Bring who you want to the party.

Take what you want with you.


[Unit 8] Prepositions

█ Part A Advanced Prepositions

	고급 전치사

	전치사
	기능/의미
	문장

	시간의 전치사

	since

until

for

by
	출발점

종점

기간

마감
	Mark has been studying since ten o’clock.

He will continue studying until four o’clock.

He will study for six hours.

He has to be home by five o’clock.

	장소의 전치사

	against

among

beneath

beyond
	접촉

무리 안에서

아래/밑

더 멀리
	The rake is leaning against the side of the house.

There is a cat sitting among the dogs.

The dog is sleeping beneath the table.

The baseball landed beyond the school fence.

	기타 전치사

	regarding

despite

except

per

versus

via
	~에 관하여

대신에

제외하고
각각

~와 경쟁하여

방법/수단으로
	The school called regarding Sam’s absences.

We had a good trip despite the cold weather.

All the students except Jenny visited the farm.

This car travels up to 200 kilometers per hour.

Brazil is playing versus France tomorrow.

We’re flying to Sydney via Singapore. (by way of )

The box is being sent via airplane. (by means of)


█ Part B Verbs and Prepositions

	동사와 전치사

	일부 동사들은 전치사와 연어관계를 형성한다. 일부는 종종 동사와 전치사 사이에 목적어를 갖는다. 또 일부는 (목적어가 없는 동사인) 자동사를 포함한다.

	직접목적어에 의하여 분리될 수 있는 동사 + 전치사 연어: accuse of, add to*, ask for, borrow from, explain to, forgive for, help with**, protect from, stop from, thank for
	The policeman accused the woman of driving too fast.

Mark asked the teacher for an extension on the assignment.

Claire borrowed some paper from Jenny.

Mrs. Jenkins explained the homework to the students.

The helmet protects bike riders from injury.

	(목적어가 없는 동사) 자동사가 있는 동사 + 전치사 연어: agree on/to, approve of, believe in, belong to, care about, concentrate on, decide on, dream about/of, graduate from, recover from, search for, take care of, travel to, wait for, work for
	Allen and Peter agreed on which movie to see.

I think this jacket belongs to that girl.

Jenny really cares about saving the environment.

I can’t decide on a university to attend after high school.

After he recovered from the fl u, he was able to play soccer again.

We have to wait for my sister to arrive before we leave.

	*add to는 “증가”를 의미하여 직접목적어 없이 쓰일 수 있다.
· Cars add to the problem of air pollution.

**help with는 직접목적어 없이 쓸 수 있는데, 의미는 변하지 않는다.

· I help my parents with the housework. 
· I help with the housework.


█ Part C Phrasal Verbs

	구동사

	일부 전치사들은 동사와 연어를 이루어 두 개의 낱말을 분리했을 때와는 뚜렷이 다른 의미를 만들어낸다. 이 연어를 구동사라고 부른다. 직접목적어와 함께 쓰이면, 일부는 분리되고, 일부는 분리되지 않는다.

	일부 구동사들은 목적어에 의하여 분리될 수 있다.*
예: call off , cheer up, drop off , figure out, find out, give up, hand in, kick out (of), look up, make up, put off , put out, take up, think over
	The game was called off because of rain.

Officials called the game off because of rain.

The students tried hard to figure out the answer.

Jenny sent an e-card to her mother to cheer her up.

Mr. Davis dropped off Allen at the library.

Emily looked the information up on the Internet encyclopedia.

	일부 구동사들은 분리될 수 없다.
예: check in, come across, drop by, drop out (of), get along (with), get off , get in, grow up, look after, run into, show up, take after
	Peter came across an interesting book in the store.

I am going to drop by the supermarket on the way home.

Claire doesn’t get along with her cousin Anna.

Charlie grew up in London.

	* 이런 구동사들은 직접목적어가 대명사일 때는 반드시 분리된다.

· We figured it out. (O)

· We figured out it. (X)


[Unit 9] Direct and Indirect Speech

█ Part A Verb Tense and Form

	동사의 시제와 형태

	직접화법의 현재시제 동사는 간접화법의 과거시제로 바뀐다.

	She said, “I see him.”

They replied, “We are working hard.”

She announced, “I am going to quit the team.”
	She said (that) she saw him.

They replied (that) they were working hard.

She announced (that) she was going to quit the team.

	직접화법의 과거와 완료시제 동사는 간접화법의 과거완료시제 동사로 바뀐다.

	She said, “I slept very little.”

They said, “We have been playing chess.”
	She said (that) she had slept very little.

They said (that) they had been playing chess.

	명령과 요청에서, 직접화법의 동사는 간접화법에서 보통 부정사로 바뀐다.

	“Clean your room right now,” Mom said.

“Please do not eat in class,” the teacher said.
	Mom told* me to clean my room right away.

The teacher asked* her students not to eat in class.

	*명령과 요청에서, 동사 say는 쓰이지 않는다. 또한 명령과 요청은 직접목적어가 필요하다.
· 명령과 함께 쓰이는 동사: tell, command, order

· 요청과 함께 쓰이는 동사: ask, request


█ Part B Question Forms and Time Shifts

	의문형태와 시간변화

	yes/no 의문문은 간접화법에서 if나 whether 그리고 정상적 주어-동사 어순을 쓴다.

	“Do you want some ice cream?” she asked him.
“Is that your ballet teacher?” they asked her.
	She asked if he wanted* some ice cream.

They asked if that was her ballet teacher.

	간접화법의 정보의문문은 직접화법의 주어-동사 어순을 도치시킨다.

	Tanya asked, “Who is that boy in the red cap?”

“When are we meeting them?” Peter asked.
	Tanya asked who the boy in the red cap was.

Peter asked when they were meeting them.

	만일 간접화법이 그와 대응하는 직접화법과 같은 날에 전달되면, 시간변화 부사가 필요하지 않다. 만일 훗날에 전달되면, 시간변화가 필요하다.

	She said, “We’re meeting them later tonight.”

“I ate too much last night,” he said.
	She said that they are meeting them later tonight.

He said that he had eaten too much the night before.

	시간변화 (직접화법 → 간접화법):
now→ then/at that moment, today→ that day, tonight → that night, this morning → that morning, this afternoon → that afternoon, yesterday → the day before, last week → the week before, tomorrow → the next/following day, next week → the next/following week

	*비격식적인 대화에서, 만일 질문이 아직 연관이 있으면 (즉, 간접화법이 대화의 중간에 있을 때), 간접화법 동사는 현재로 남아 있을 수 있다.
· A: Do you want a glass of water? 
· B: Sorry, what did you say? 
· C: She asked if you want a glass of water.

· B: Oh, OK. Yes, please.


█ Part C Modals in Indirect Speech

	간접화법의 법조동사

	일부 법조동사는 직접화법의 현재시제에서 간접화법의 과거시제로 변한다.

	My parents said, “We may buy a new car.”

My friend said, “I can speak French.”

They said, “We have to meet at the pond.”

She announced, “I will quit the team.”
	My parents said that they might buy a new car.

My friend said that she could speak French.

They said that they had to meet at the pond.

She announced that she would quit the team.

	일부 법조동사는 직접화법과 간접화법 사이에서 변하지 않는다.

	My parents said, “We might buy a new car.”

My father said, “I should mow the lawn.”

My coach said, “You ought to train harder.”
	My parents said that they might buy a new car.

My father said that he should mow the lawn.

My coach said that I ought to train harder.

	일부 법조동사는 간접화법에서 기능에 따라 다른 형태를 취한다.

	They said, “We must meet at the pond.” (의무)

Mark said, “Allen must be sick today because his desk is empty.” (개연성/논리적 결론)
	They said that they had to meet at the pond.

(must는 간접화법에서 의무를 표현하기 위하여 항상 쓰이지는 않는다.)

Mark said that Allen must have been sick that day because his desk was empty.*

	*이 경우에, 법조동사는 단순히 시제만 바뀐다.


[Unit 10] Passive Voice

█ Part A Active vs. Passive

	능동태와 수동태

	수동태는 문장의 주어가 행위자(때로는 알려지지 않은 행위자)의 행위를 받는 문장이다.*
수동태는 be 동사와 과거분사로 만들어진다.

	능동태
	My father parked the car.

We sold our house.

	행위자를 가진 수동태
(행위자를 가리키기 위하여 by를 쓴다.)

행위자가 없는 수동태
	The car was parked by my father.

The mail is always delivered by our local mailman, Ken.

Thousands of children are born every day.

A lot of the cakes were not eaten.

	수동태는 행위를 받는 사람이나 물건을 강조하기 위하여 흔히 쓰인다. 또한 수동태는 행위자가 서술된 상황에서 중요하지 않음을 보여준다.
	Parents were notified about recent bullying problems.

	산문작성에서, 수동태는 더 객관적으로 만들고 행위자를 알리는 것을 피하기 위하여 쓸 수 있다.
*행위자라는 낱말은 행위를 일으키는 물건이나 사람을 가리키기 위하여 쓰인다.


█ Part B The Stative Passive

	상태 수동태

	상태 수동태 형태는 과거분사가 형용사로 쓰이고 그 앞에 be 동사가 올 때 생긴다.
상태 수동태는 일정 기간에 걸쳐 있을 수 있는 상태를 가리킬 수 있는 반면에, 수동형태의 동작동사는 한 상태에서 다른 상태로의 변화를 가리키는 경향이 있다.

수동태의 동작 동사 - The car was damaged by a careless driver. (완전한 상태에서 망가진 상태로 변화)

상태 수동태 - The car is damaged. (현재 망가진 상태로 있다.)

	be + 과거분사
	We are pleased with our team’s results in the World Cup.

Alan will be interested in that new science fiction movie.

They are worried about this weekend’s weather forecast.

	이 형태에서의 일반적 표현들:  be filled with, be interested in, be known for/as, be located in, be married to, be named for/after, be opposed to, be related to, be required to, be satisfied with, be surprised at/by, be terrified of, be tired of/from, be worried about


█ Part C Direct and Indirect Objects in the Passive Voice

	수동태의 직접목적어와 간접목적어

	능동태 문장에 두 개의 목적어가 있으면, 어느 것이나 수동태 문장의 주어가 될 수 있다.

	직접목적어 → 주어

(능동태)      (수동태)
	The teacher gave the student a report card. (능동)

A report card was given to the student (by the teacher).* (수동)

Her parents will lend them the car. (능동)

The car will be lent to them (by her parents). (수동)

	간접목적어 → 주어
(능동태)      (수동태)
	The teacher gave the student a report card. (능동)

The student was given a report card (by the teacher). (수동)

Her parents will lend them the car. (능동)

They will be lent the car (by her parents). (수동)

	introduce, suggest, explain와 같은 동사는 수동태에서 직접목적어만이 주어가 될 수 있다.
	A different time was suggested to them. (O)

They were suggested a different time. (X)

Photosynthesis was explained to the students. (O)

The students were explained photosynthesis. (X)

	*수동태 문장에서, 전치사는 언제나 간접목적어 앞에 오고, by는 행위자 앞에 온다.


█ Part D Passive Voice Clauses

	수동태절

	일부 수동태 문장들은 행동의 행위자보다는 직접목적어의 역할을 하는 내용절에 초점을 둔다. 이 경우, 흔히 it가 주어로 쓰이고, 동사는 흔히 believe, think 또는 알리는 동사이다.*

	Scientists say that the earth is billions of years old.

Some people used to think that the Earth was flat.
	It is said that the Earth is billions of years old.

It was once thought that the Earth was flat.

It used to be thought that the Earth was flat.

	많은 문장들에서, 내용절의 주어가 (it 대신에) 문장의 주어가 된다. 이 경우에, 수동태 동사 뒤에 부정사구가 온다.

	Scientists say that earth is billions of years old.

Some people think that dinosaurs were killed by a meteor.

Historians reported that Alexander was a vicious ruler.
	Earth is said to be billions of years old.

Dinosaurs are thought to have been killed by a meteor.

Alexander was reported to have been a vicious ruler.

	*내용절은 주절에 의하여 암시되거나 언급된 내용을 제공하는 종속절이다.


█ Part E The Passive of Modal Auxiliaries

	수동태 법조동사

	법조동사와 함께 하는 현재수동태는 법조동사 + be + 과거분사의 형태를 취한다.
부정형에는, be 앞에 not를 놓으라.

의문문에는, (Wh-의문사) + 법조동사 +주어 + be + 과거분사의 형태를 쓰라.
	He might be found in park.

They should be allowed to enter the country.

He couldn’t be found in the school.

Should they be allowed in this room?

Where should the money be kept?

	법조동사와 함께 하는 과거수동태는 법조동사 + have been + 과거분사의 형태를 취한다.
부정형에는, have 앞에 not를 놓으라.

의문문에는, (Wh-의문사) + 법조동사 +주어 + have been + 과거분사의 형태를 쓰라.
	He should have been found in the school.

He may have been hit in the leg.

The food might have been cooked yesterday.

They should have been helped.

They should not have been allowed to leave.

Could they have been badly injured?

How could he have been informed about this?
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